"Torrey Truth and Trivia
(through the 19th Century)

Tha tovn of Torrey was formed from parts of Benton and Milo
on the 1kth of November, 1851. and named for the chairman of the board
of Supervisors at that time., It was the last of the nine téwhshlps to
ha mrected in Yates County, but the first to be settled in 1788 by <the

Priends Socliety.

In September of_1779, Sullivans troops scoured the east side of
Seneca Lake destroying Indian crops and villages. Ha sent a detach-
ment. of 400 men on the west side to destroy é'settlement at Gothescu-
guean, now Xashong. This 1s the nearest the ReVOlutionaryTWafAéhgp Lo
Torrey.

Soldlers in this Sullivan's Army found the country so beautiful
and productive that one officer reported on the "150 scres of the best
rorn I ever saw (soms of the stalks grew 16 feet high), besides grent
quantities of heans, potatoes, pumpkins, cucumbers, gqouashes and

watermelonzs.” They returned to thelr homes anxious to come here to

settle.

Jemima Wilkinson, born 1752 in Cumberland, Rhode Island, daughter
of Jeremianh and Ann for Amy) Whipple had begun a religlous culit of her

swn when she was 23 years old.

In 1726, or 1787 in some sources, explorers Rilchard Smith, Thomas
Unthawey, and Abraham Dayton were sent out by her followers to search
for o place Ffor them to establish a New Jerusslem., They found a couple
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of Trench traders, DeBari.cn and Poudre living st the site of the old
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tr.dinan Village, now Xashong. These men gave the scouts good repvoris of
+un prea end after investigating 1t, the returned to Jemima to recommend.

the locatlion,

In 1788, a committee of Thomas Eathaway, James Parker, Willlem
?otteﬁ snd Senedict Robinson, "Men of means and prominence", were gsent
retpurchase the 1and. They chose 14,000 ascres, Long Point being about
the center of the site. The state of New York sold these lands to them

by petent for the Congregetion of the Universal Friends.

In August of 1788, a party of 25 of Jemima's followers came DY
vay of Albany on boats, . Passing up the outlet, they came to the falls,
"explored the neighborheod, and declded to settle there about one. mille
south of the present villaga of Dresden. Aboﬁt 12 acres Qf wheat were
planted,’ the forst in the county. They nearly starved in thc-ﬁﬁdter of
1789, some lived on boiled poiatoes and milk, some had only nettles and
“wohea tea to sustalin them. The settlement was near City H1ll Cemctexry,
where meny of them are wpuried, the first relng Ers. Jedediah Holmes 1in

1788.

Jonathen Davis brought fronm Athens, Pennsylvanle the flour from
two bushels of wheat, carrving i1t on hils back the whole 65 miles, save
for the 20 miles he =was rowed down Senece Lake to Dresden. The next year,

1789, & mill was built and soon other mills came into existence.

Other settlerm sought homes in this Treglon and more members of
tyne enct =rrived., The survey of the county was completed in 1789,
Jamima came the next yOAr and 1ived in a hog house, but they soon

wWiilt tre first Trame bulldineg in thidp county, probebly the first frame

wuitlding in the Genesee country, for her, The firast meeting houst waASs
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~lzo built thils same year of logs and was on Or neal the James M. Clark

yronerty in Torrey, not far scuth of the outlet, A census of 1760

ahawed 80 familles in the Friend's settlement snd 260 people.

In time, they set up a treoding post near the prosent villege of
Orenden where they troded grain and frult with the Indians. Red Jacket,
Corn Planter, and their perty of Indians were encamped ot Morris Landing

1n 1791 en route to Canendsigua where Iinkerton's great tresty meelling

wng held.

The first mearri:ge in torrey wes Benedict Hobinson to Susannah
Brovmn, the 1¢6 of September, 1792, This same yealr, tnhefirst store was
Yent by Elirhelet Morris. He prurchased furs from thi Indisns, giving
clethas and vhiskey in payment.

-

Hopétona lTocated bv Captaln Williamsen, close to the}P%e:Emption
line, was in 900 acres lying between the line and Seneca Lake., This
wes not in the Pulteney rurchrse, but was owned urtil 1819 by people
- 11iving in the enstern part of the state. John Nicholas erected several

'

wills in the Xeuka ontlet ¥nown <s Hoveton F1lls, but there were outzide
tre villege of Hopeton linlts, These were .. ter owned by Abraham Dox
hrt11 festroyed by fire, An orticle fron the venevs Upzette July 19,
1829, rewds ns followss "Tre valusble Horeton Nil11l property of Abrahem
Dox, Zsquire »es destreoyed by fire 12 Pay, 1729, The loss 1ls heavy, the
i) contaelined bHetween 3,000 - 4,000 mishels of wheet and 1,000 beorrels
AT anr,  Lhi losse s srohably $7,000 which is the gmount of the

‘v envance,  Lhis wes one of the finest mills in the western country ond

ne? recantly been rubt Ao verfect order.”
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* 'Villege of Dresden

Twenty some years after Hopeton had been estanlished, two bro-
ther, Ianac and aymon. Bogart of Albany, related to the Van Rensseleer
family and weslthy, bought nost of the 1and where Dresden now stands.

A tract of 106 acres, virgin lsné on the lake shore lying on elther side
of the then Croolked Lake outlet. They buillt a flouring mill on Senece
Street in 1831 which ran by’ the-stone rrocess until .1855 when 1t was
bought hy Henry 3irkett. At his death, hils sons, “1111am and Clerence,
ran 1t until Clerence went to Penn Yan where he and Calvin Russell

built the Birkett Mills. Clarence Ferenbaugh bougnt the Dresden M111l,

-

rgmoZieled it into a roller process mill, and ran 1+ about 14 years.

Wwilliem Birkett bought 1t in 1912 and ran 1t unt1l 1925 when the dam went

an? and New York Electric and Gas bdought 1t.

Isaac also buillt a store on Seneca Street ne~r the lake and
oprnsite hls house which was built early in the 1800's. I have been
£51¢d that this house 1s now the home of Mr. and NMrs. Edger Parkhurst.

b Y

Taene Dogart dled the 2kth of September, 1832, at 55 years, and hls

wife Yaria dled May 24, 1853 at 71 years of eage.

Harmon Bogert was e lawyer and lived in Geneva, but soon begnn
to mealke improvements and lay out streets for =a village. They gave 3

public squares on Maln 3treet for p-rks.

Fe built a brick house near the lake for one of his daughters,
Cathelina Delmater on Carnelia Street, Her husband, Hichard, dled
hatare 3t was finished but his widow and two dauvghters, Jane and

Chrintina ccecupiled 1t meny yooars. It is row owned by the brwin Weckers.,

e
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Dr. Charles Bogart, son of Harmon, dled November 29, 18%% ot
80 years and 1s buried in Hopeton. He married Susan Remer, born Deceme

wer 27, 1821, daughter of Joseph and Mary Embree Remer, They lived

where “ho Ray Smalleys now are.

Yhen the canal was bullt in 1833, mills, warehouses, boatyards
and A&ry docks sprang ur at Dresden with this lake prosperity. There
waa no need for the separate village of Hopeton, and it gradﬁally Tl sl
avay. In 1865, there wares only 18 houses, a small hotel, and - a

gchool house. The Gén@va paper dated December?, 1829 sald} Ythe vost
office at Hopeton 1s removed to the flourishing village of Dresden and
. Dyer Ford, Esq., 18 app&lnted post master in place of Abroham D 3,Esq.,

rcmovcd." Finally with the building of the railroad, Hopeton became &

name only. Dresden was sgupposedly on jts way to becomlnguthe.b%ﬁnfy
. ' v :.‘

a0t in 1850 - 1870, but the land secemed more valuable to the villags
fathers than to the county, and Dresden falled to expand/. Disaster

came by fire snd many buginess places never rebuilt.

Tn 1867 Dresden was incorporated with a population of 372,
tuther Harris was first president of the village and Aaron MclLean, the
first clerk. At this tima, Torrey was malnly interested in agricvliunre
and frult growing, althouvgh a tile and brick yard wasg ownalhpy John

Reiner and Co.

On an 18282 map, the nome is West Dresden and it was so namel
heonuaas thars was another Dresden in Washington aounty, Neﬁ Yoxl,
which g far to thc‘cestern part of the atate., By 1890, thils POSS
o Tinn wog discontinued, and the trustees of the village of Dresden
petitioned the Pogt Master General to allow them the eliminate the
word "Wegt®., There was & post office 1in West Drycden, Tompiins Countyr,
and mail was often miasent, This was allowed and the post offive and the
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Seneen Lake once competed with the Hudson River for importance oo

o Mavsn-South waterway in New York State. Passenger steamers, tow hoate
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anc. elnopg carried the ever greater nurber of gsettlers to the wes

Pat

Sarm produce to the enst. Hundreds of travelers went by water between

Watiing and Genaeva every aay.

In 1796, hundreds of gettlers say the launching of the L0 ton
slooyw, Alexander, one of the many promoted by Charles Williamson, lend
aront Tor a British group that owned much of thls territory. Thie

sloop elone carried all ploneecr goods and passengers between Watkinag and

Gonevn until 1813 when she was joined by the Robert Throop.

Seneca Lakels first steam craft the Seneca Chief came July I,
1828, She had been DeWltt Clinton's flag ship on hils parade ACYOSS the
gt~ts on the opening the Eyie Cansl., In 1832, she was leﬁgtﬁ%néﬁ;4' o

.

improved at Big Stream, and nemed Geneva,

™ 1835, the Richard Stevens was built, then the Chemung, Xenn-
gagn end the Seneca, Each vear new steamers were buillt to carry the

great wastward traffile.

John R. Johnson, ownoxr of the Seneca, and who later hed tho
Kenninsaga built, contracted with the Erle Rallroad to transport all

westhound pessengers fror Watking to Geneva.

nther noted bonta were Ben Loder, A.W. Langdon, later called the
, P.H. Fileld, Duncan S. lMagee, Elmira, W.B.Dunning, and

oy 4
Senhuyler

K gy A
Ateotlianna
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mne Ben Loder wes a monster, 250 feet long, built about 184G e
She carried 2,000 passengers. Four boilers and four stecks
arned up B0 cords of wood for s round trip. The man, Benjamin Lode s

wfe
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ra a7Ticial of the Erie Pallroad, lad guaranted a minimum of oo pas-

cancors a dey. The Ratlroad exceeded this guarantee by form 100 te 600

r

-
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and made all the beneflt. So the steamboat company wanted a c?1l qul’

{
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on the contract, when this was agreed to, the Erie extended her ralls
to Cnnandﬂigua} leaving the Ben Loder to become & tow boat which once
drarced 70 barges after 1T. Shs burned st Watkins dock July 19, 1862
and her machinery went i1nto the Elmira, another fairly lerge boat. The

Atefrinna bullt in 1883 finally h=d the leke to herself,

The steamer Duncen S. Magae was built ab Dresden boat yord and
1aunched there in the early 1860°'s. Benjamin Franklin Youngs, fatheX of
Setn and Ancestor of Ffank Lemch lived at Henderson Mills, form@rly Tar-
.mcr's w11ls in the Deacon May house at May's Mills. At the south end

of the Creek bridge w=s a 11ttle work shop where Benjamin turned. out
T e ~X ‘

.
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all the stansions for this steameX.

The P.H. Fileld wes renamed the Onondaga and carried 1,000 pas-
gengers when Wetkins Glen was 1n its most popular era. Later, in 1898
she wes blowm up by dyvnamite at Geneva. A show troupe hed been quarin=

tAnad on her with arall DoX.

Th
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Dresden-Jenn Yan oad was a plank road and part of a stage
coach route. At Legg's Corners, where the Ridge Road crosses 1t stood
an inn where coach pasSsSengers ate and some trsrried over night.
Diersonally, ACYOSS +-e corner to the southwest, stood the stabhld where
norses were fed. Bu&lt into tae gable end of thils huilding wes a Doard
grme 0O inches 1oné end maybe 20 inches wide. Cavrved on or cut upon, nov
tnto thig board Qas the 0dd Fellow's emblem of three links., Below thls

woe the date 182-, Penn Yan-Keuka 1.0.,0,F. Lodge was started in 1844,

-



o thin wag probably thelir £1rst meeting place in the county. Farther
rd Penn Yen, a tall gate, west of the Winton Pulver farm and

Ahou’s where the Enos and Gray homes now stand.

The following 1s from a newspaper clipping innan old scrap HoOCK.

orcing to a story, which 13 substantlisted by musty records, shoxtly

o
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vay the Civil ¥Yar, Lotes County had within 1its boundarles a countex-
feiter who, while probably clever enough for his day, would be cdeemsd
the vougherst of amateunrs o¥ the masters of the professlion who freguently

cornared by faderal agents today.

s,

The main character »"3111* Dean, asccording to the story, ™med n

" farm in Torrey, 1In what was then known ag "Doodletovm"®, where h& 1s

“o have manufactured bogus ftfty cent pleces. This mon#y, it
-

wno snid, vAas hrought to Psnn Yan, where 1t was circulatcd through tnﬁ

anloons, the customary dodge vas to glve the money to purchass drinks

-

e take good cash In change. It appears that Dean had a horsa wnioh
was notorious for wandering avey and damnagzing thes crops of nearbdy
noichbors,., Dean vas warned by a perty named Baler to k@ép betier

tynck of the animal or gomathing would happsn to 1. One day the horse
and Dean searched and sdvertised without resultb.

wag micsling,

Sametime leater, two hunters golng through a place then Ynown
as Yara Mills found the body of a horse fagtenad by a long log chaln to
n stout ash tree. vvidence showed that the horse had been hained to ©

e tree where after eating all within reach, it finally died of star-

T the meantime, with egents hot on his trall, Dean finelly was

arrncte? on the counterfailting charge and imprisoned in the only

w2y
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inil, the Himrod pound, from which he soon made his escepe. The

nsenna turned out one of the greatest man hunts which ever has talken

place in the county, but 1t proved useless.

According to the story told by old timers, Dean went to hls
faym where he hid in e deep well, located back in the flelds; his
wife bringing Gally suporlies.: .When the hue and cry atdd down, the man

mada cood encape, turning up In the county again in later years.

Tt 4s thought that some Penn Yan psople st1ll have sonme of
these pileces as souvenirs., A large quantity was turned up by FPrank

Whitaker while prowing on what is now known as the Edward Quenan farnm,

The -Crotked Lake Canal was sterted in the early 1830's and
vas in operation from 1833-1877. It was vital to the logal community
e X : .
of Penn Yan, bringing in Merchandise from world marts to the 1oca£ »
szoren and taXingout procedure from all parts of the county. In the
Alstonce of eight miles, from Dresden a boat was towed from lock to
locY by mules and reledd, throuvgh 1ts twenty seven locks and a puard

1ock, 267 feot on to Keulka Lake,

There wag a cenal express service and some merchants owned
thelir own canal boats. In fact, aftexr the state abandonad the canal,
14t wes maintaned several years by business men Iin Fenn Yan and elong

Kenkvn Lake,

Joseph Remer, a shoemaker at Hopeton in the time of Jemine
Wilkinson, moved to Dresden in 1830, opened the Eagle Hotel and was
1te prorrietor for ten years. He wes also collector for the Crooied

et —~ s

Lave Conal at this vlace.

Dregden was =~ regular landing place for canal boats anc atonmers

O 15
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ot the "ILaneca Lako Na%igatlon Co.”‘and soon outgrew the'first prall
namlat of Hopston. There were stores, a brewery, A& woolen facétory,
nlaster mill, a saw mill, carrisge shop, two notels and after the
canal was dbulilt, a hoatyerd where many boats were built., Also a

Arydock camne into being. Dresden became a good grain marxet for the

currounding couatry

, d1stillery was bullt near the

e

Ty the late 1850's a lorsg
A ouring mill at the foot of Seneca Street. Francis Hood built two
1eyrze Cooper shops to make whilgkey barrels for the distilleryn After-
wards, he bullt e factory Tor moaking filour barcelstaves and headings,.

A%t ons time, he had from 75 to 100 men working. In 1875 the distillery

was destroyed by flre and he moved to Michlgan.



The Corkscrew Rall Road

Tn 1876-77, the New Yorx Central Rall Road built the Fall BrooX
throurh Torrey. A few years after the canel was abandoned, some busi-

naosafon of Penn Yan, among whom were Oliver G. Shearman, William H.

o

Yox, John T. Andrews 2nd, Frankiln E. Smith, George Wagener and
Celvin Russell inaugurated = movement for the conétructlon of n all
voad along the line of the unused state waterway. The Penn Yen and
New ?ork Railway Co. was organized, Ol*ver G. Shaﬁfman was Presidents

?vran¥klin Smith, secretary; Henry Tuthill, treasure, and nine directors,

The legislature authorized the commissioners of the land office
to convey to the new company all the lands between the blue 1ines of
the Crooked Lake Canal with certain reservations., The considera?ion
of this transfer was 4200.69, but the cost to the promotérsTWas*ﬁﬂny’;w

" fimes that amount.

Arrengement was made with the Fall Frook Coal Company to bulld
snd ecuip the road, Thlé wes completed and the first trailn passed over,A
the zo called "Corkserew Na 1l Road" the 3rd of August, 168&. ITrmediotely
after comstruction of the road, the Penn Yan and New York Rallway Co.
tranaferred a2l rights, £1tle and interest which they had acquired to

twe Fpl) Brook Co. In addltion to this Fall Brook pald thely guarantee

company a bonus of £20, 000 for bringlng about tnis sonsumatlon.

Around 1907, the rond was lTeased by the New York Central Co.
for a voriod of 99 years. The rToad lies mostly on the tww path of the
abandoned canal while in two or three places the tracks pass through

twe original cutstone locks.
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Preobytﬂrlqn Church of Dresden was organized November 14, 1830
ao the Conokegnt*orol Churﬂh of Weast Dresden. The first aight members
came from the Preshyterian Church of Benton located at Mount Plegsant.

Yavr, William Todd, tha Benton Church supply, was the first pastor.

on March 1, 183, the church was orxanized as the First Presby-
terien Church of West Dresden. The Church building wis built tnat
yeay and dedicated the shith of November., It was on 1mmd leter purchased

Pebruary 20, 1839 from Herran 1. Bogart for $60.00.

Tne trustees menﬁloned 1n the deed were Charles Ray, Samuel
Chapman, Hiram Vescelus, George H. Stewart, and Furman Goodwin. The
chﬁrrh wns dissolved about 1924, For agout 6 months during. 1833. Rev.

: S

John Ingersoll was pagtor and his son Bobert was born here the 11*9 of‘

August in the building knovn as the Ingersoll House.

The manse used by the shurch had been given by Frank Hord and
reverted to that family where no Yonger used by the church. Puring
1810 and 1850, the Methodlats nccupled the church under lease, later pur-

chasing the former Baptist Churchi

The present Methodlst Church was built in 1832 by the Boger

(D

brotrere. AYYL falths worshipped there, Methodists, Baptists, Pr sbhy-

teriens, Dutch Reformed, and Universslists as they made ap ointment

The Yoithodlsts purchssd 1t 1in 1849, The belfry was removed in 1920

and morxings on the bell show that 1t was cast in 1831,



Sencca Lake Freszea

On TFriday the 9th of February, 1912, Fred Dean of Dresden,
D»1 Denard of Himrod, Clyde Jones and Lon Pridmore of Dresden made e
¢orinz end hilstory making jourﬁey ccrogs Seneca Lake on lce skateso.
They tled thcméelves together with 50 feet of clothesline as a gafety

measirc.

Tt took them 27 minutes to make the trip to Willard, 5ecausc they
cnecYed the thlckness of the ice occasionally, 1t was 3" thick in the
middle of the Ltk They woiTeAlinte the village and Fred called his
wife ho Aaidn't know Mhere he was. She gaid, “If you see a polliceman
over there, you'd better nave him lock you up!" The trip home took

only 15 minutes.

s

e hod been watching the lake from an upstalrw beérSdﬁ ﬁﬁ;&cw -
2ll that week., On Wednesday, there was only a small strip of opren water
An $hd nitdre of The Teke. This strip was filled with trousands of
wild ducks, many of them frozen in the ice., On that day, he skated as
nenr 4o the ducks as he dared to look the situatlon over. He returned
nome, went to the store to interest other fellows that the 1ak¢ wa s goihg
+o freeze over, One came over with him end they both went out to see Ltne

ducke. Iney then gkotdad to Geneva ond back, checking the streak of

onen water,

Thursdny there was a dark streak in the lake which he bellievedld

hat he skated ont and found the 1ce wonld

ct

waa omen water, It was Fridey
held nim. Ye ryushed aclk, collected his friends and they went across.

he avated agross agtin on saturday, andé often t roughout the next weecl,

According to early records this freezing of the lake followed the

coldnat Jonuary on record umr ten days of temperatures below zeXo. The



1ave woe nlso comvletely frozen in 1855, 1875, 1885,

Tervlon! Nenlald- ol ryHimrod and Miles Rapalee rode across the lele
ro Loail on February 15, 1875 in a cutter drawn by Miners Rapalee and
weleon Moore on skates. Tt too¥ them 18 minutes to go across and 35

minutes to return against a stAff wind.

The ice began to hrenk up March 17, 1912, and lkarl Shannon
aniled his ice boat on Seneca st 9 a.m, on that day and at 2 p.m. the
eame day, he used his motor boal over the same couy.e over which he had

1ce bosted in the rorning.

During this moht thet the lalke was frozen 1t hed been like 2o
county felr, with old peovnle, ¥y youngsters, horqe drawn cutters..skaters,
mory hen narhad pagssengers ond hundreds Just walling on the 103, ﬁhnj o

mecting old frienda for the fires it time in ycars.

vost of this materinl has been gleaned from scrap hooks whilch
peonle have 80 ¥indly loaned to me, but I believe it to be true. Any

new materia2l oxr proven corrections would be appreclated.

Betty F. Smallecy



